
 

 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Full 
Committee 

DATE: Tuesday, 11 January 2022 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: The Civic, Barnsley - The Civic 

 
AGENDA 
 

Full Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
All Members of the Committee Should Attend. 
 
Administrative and Governance Issues for the Committee 
 
1   Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives   

 
To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

2   Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest   
 
To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda. 
 

3   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To approve the minutes of previous meetings of the Committee for: 
 
Full Committee – 7 September 2021 
Sustainable Barnsley Workstream – 12 October 2021 
Growing Barnsley Workstream – 2 November 2021 
Healthy Barnsley Workstream – 30 November 2021 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee 
 
4   Provisional Education Outcomes Across the Borough 2020/21  (Pages 11 - 

26) 
 

5   Children's Social Care Performance Cover Report October 2021 (Redacted)  
(Pages 27 - 32) 
 

6   Exclusion of the Public and Press   
 
The public and press will be excluded from this meeting during consideration of 
the items so marked because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended, subject to the public interest test. 
 

7   Children's Social Care Performance Cover Report October 2021 (Redacted)  
(Pages 33 - 84) 
 
7a – Children’s Social Care Performance Cover Report October 2021   
7b – Children’s Social Care Performance Report October 2021 
7c – Understanding Children’s Social Care Performance 

Public Document Pack



 

7d – Outcomes of the Annual Ofsted Conversation Between the Director of 
Children’s Services and Ofsted 
 

 Reason restricted:  
Paragraph (2) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

Enquiries to Jane Murphy, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Email scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 
 

mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 
 

Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Bowser, Cain, Clarke, Coates, K. Dyson, 
Felton, Fielding, Frost, Gollick, Green, Hand-Davis, Hayward, D. Higginbottom, 
Kitching, Lodge, Lowe-Flello, Markham, McCarthy, Mitchell, Newing, Noble, 
Osborne, Pickering, Richardson, Risebury, Smith, Stowe, Sumner, Tattersall, 
Wilson, Wraith MBE and Wray together with Statutory Co-opted Member 
Ms. G Carter (Parent Governor Representative) 
 
Electronic Copies Circulated for Information 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services 
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Michael Potter, Service Director, Business Improvement and Communications 
Martin McCarthy, Service Director, Governance, Members and Business Support 
Press 
 
Witnesses:- 

 
2pm:- 
 
Mel John-Ross, Executive Director Children’s Services, BMBC 
Jane Allen, Service Manager for Education Welfare, Children’s Services Directorate, 
BMBC 
Helen Collins, Business Improvement and Intelligence Advisor, Core Services 
Directorate, BMBC 
Liz Gibson, Virtual Headteacher, Looked After Children and Vulnerable Groups, 
Children’s Services Directorate, BMBC 
Nina Sleight, Service Director, Education, Early Start & Prevention, Children’s 
Services Directorate, BMBC 
Tom Smith, Head of Employment and Skills, Place Directorate, BMBC 
Neil Wilkinson, Projects and Contracts Manager, Place Directorate, BMBC 
Anna Turner, Interim Head of Education and Partnerships, Children’s Services 
Directorate, BMBC 
Paul Crook, Principal of Penistone Grammar School and Chair of Barnsley Alliance 
Lee McClure, Headteacher at Springvale Primary School and Joint Chair of 
Barnsley Alliance 
Ken Merry, Vice Principal for Quality, Barnsley College 
Councillor Trevor Cave, Cabinet Spokesperson for Children’s Services, BMBC 

 
3pm:- 
 
Mel John-Ross, Executive Director Children’s Services, BMBC 
Councillor Trevor Cave, Cabinet Spokesperson for Children’s Services, BMBC 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Healthy Barnsley Workstream 

DATE: Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 
 

 

1 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Cain, Fielding, 

Gollick, Hayward, Lodge, Newing, Noble, Osborne, 
Smith, Tattersall, Wilson, Wraith MBE and Wray 
together with co-opted member Ms. G Carter (attended 
virtually) 
 

  
  
 

32 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

33 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
Councillor Ennis declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No. 36 as he is a non-
Executive Director of Barnsley Health Federation.  He vacated the Chair during 
discussion of this item.  Councillor Newing also declared a non-pecuniary interest in 
Minute No, 36 as she is employed by the NHS. 
 

34 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2nd November 2021 (Growing Barnsley 
Workstream) were received. 
 

35 Dental Services in Barnsley  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting: 
 
Deborah Pattinson, Dental Commissioning Lead – Yorkshire & the Humber, NHS 
England and NHS Improvement 
Michael Speakman, Secretary, Barnsley Local Dental Committee 
Margaret Naylor, Chair of the Local Dental Network South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
  
Deborah Pattinson introduced this item and provided the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) with an update from NHS England and NHS Improvement on 
dentistry, including dental provision in Barnsley; the impact of Covid 19; and the key 
challenges faced.  A position statement was also provided by Healthwatch Barnsley  
to demonstrate what they are hearing from Barnsley residents, the work they have 
done and the next steps they plan to take to help improve dentistry services for 
residents across the borough. 
 

Page 5



 
2 

In the ensuing discussion, and in response to detailed questioning and challenge the 
following matters were highlighted: 
  
The Chief Dental Officer instructed all dentists to close at the start of the Covid-19 
pandemic in March 2020 whilst at the same time establishing an emergency urgent 
dental care network, with a view to practices reopening in June.  Practices have been 
delivering a much reduced dental service because of the measures which had to be 
put in place to keep staff and patients safe, with urgent care prioritised.  This has led 
to a growing backlog of non-urgent work.   Nationally there is also a contract 
restriction in place, managed locally and regionally.  All finances are allocated within 
the dental contract in perpetuity and include orthodontics and community surgery.  
Flexible commissioning has been paused during the pandemic and a different type of 
contracting approach may be needed.   
  
The tremendous difficulties facing dentistry at the moment were highlighted, including 
the increased need for PPE; the impact of social distancing requirements and 
stringent infection control measures which mean that following a dental procedure 
with a drill the surgery has to be left fallow for a significant period of time, which in 
turn limits the capacity of the dentist to do other routine and non-urgent work, 
including orthodontics referrals and oral surgery.  However, it was reiterated that all 
patients in pain and/or vulnerable are seen as a priority and many of Barnsley's 
dentists have stepped up and volunteered to become urgent dental practices.  There 
have also been difficulties in finding dentists and nurses to work in Barnsley, which 
will remain as a challenge when things return to normal. 
 
Barnsley has no stand-alone urgent dental care centre but patients can access 
urgent dental care via a call centre and will be offered emergency dental care close 
to their address - although it seems that in practice patients are usually asked to 
travel to Sheffield.  Each practice should act as an urgent dental care centre and 
should see patients regardless of their home address.  Barnsley dentists have all 
worked extremely hard to continue to provide services.  A separate 'hub' would 
require staffing with additional dentists and this would be difficult to do, given local 
and national recruitment difficulties.  It is unclear why this is, although dentists from 
abroad have been lost due to Brexit (particularly from Spain and Portugal) and it will 
be a problem for the next 5/10 years. Training numbers remain fairly stable.  It is a 
very long process to recruit dentists from overseas. 

  
It is not possible to give a geographical breakdown of the areas of highest demand 
for urgent dental care as each dental practice records Units of Dental Activity (UDAs) 
delivered, not the geographical location of patients, although it may be possible to 
obtain this information through calls to the 111 service.  

  
According to Healthwatch Barnsley, over 70% of calls received by them were in 
respect of patients being unable to access routine dental appointments.  It was 
explained that routine active care appointments within 1-2 months.  However, this 
does not include check-ups and this may mean that more dental work will be required 
in the future.  This can't be helped, as urgent care must be prioritised. 

  
It is not possible to determine how many dentists Barnsley needs, as practices keep 
their own staff records and some will be fully NHS and/or part private.  Practices are 
currently putting in place new infection control measures in order to recommence 

Page 6



 
3 

routine work, with a 65% activity target.  Private dental practices are subject to the 
same decontamination procedures and must provide their own PPE.  Where 
practices are able to they are already offering regular appointments and many 
Members had personal experience of receiving dental care during the pandemic and 
spoke very positively of the services received.  Dental contracts are measured by 
Units of Dental Activity (UDAs), not how many full or part time staff are employed or 
the size of population they serve.   
 
A member reported that there are 55 registered NHS dental practices in Barnsley.  
Some of these will provide services in other areas outside of Barnsley.  GP contracts 
are based on population numbers and patient lists, but dental contracts work to a 
different delivery model and don't cater for 100% of the population.   This model of 
contracting started in 2006, with no end date, and does not take account of 
population growth or the need for additional dentists in the area over time.   

  
Remote working (as in primary care) for dentists is problematic as patients have to 
be physically present.  As yet there is no technology available to assist with remote 
triaging.  Ventilation systems have been installed in some practices, with tools which 
don't require aerosols - this will help to avoid cross contamination.   

  
Elderly patients in care homes are usually brought into the surgery, although some 
dentists who have a contract to deliver services in care homes will visit the homes in 
full PPE if needed.  However, many homes don't want people going in at the 
moment.   
    
RESOLVED that:   

 
(i) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution;  

 
(ii) Thanks be expressed to the dental practices in Barnsley who have strived to 

deliver services throughout the pandemic; and  
 

(iii) Through local MPs, the delivery model for dental contracts should be reviewed 
nationally through Parliament, to look at both contract perpetuity and also 
financial provision for areas affected by population growth 

 

(iv) The possibility of Barnsley having a 111 walk-in UDC service should be 
investigated.   

 
 

36 Barnsley Urgent & Emergency Care (UEC) Delivery Board Strategic Winter Plan 
2021/22  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting, some of whom attended and 
contributed virtually: 
 
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Adult & Communities, BMBC 
Julie Chapman, Service Director Adult Social Care & Health, Adults & Communities, 
BMBC 
Andrew Osborn, Interim Service Director Commissioning & Integration, Adults & 
Communities, BMBC 
Carrie Abbott, Service Director Public Health & Regulation, BMBC 

Page 7



 
4 

James Barker, Chief Executive Officer, Barnsley Healthcare Federation 
Bob Kirton, Chief of Delivery and Deputy CEO, Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust 
Gill Stansfield, Deputy District Director and Clinical Transformation Lead, Barnsley 
General Community, South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 
Jamie Wike, Chief Operating Officer, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson Adult & Communities, BMBC 
Harry Truelove, Yorkshire Ambulance Service. 
 
Councillor Jenny Platts introduced this item, highlighting that winter itself is not an 
emergency but part of essential future planning, with local plans providing resilience 
to enable us to manage pressures.  The Winter Plan for 2021/22 has had input from 
all health and care partners in Barnsley, with lessons learned from 2020/21.   

  
Jamie Wike reiterated that the purpose of the winter plan is not to duplicate or 
replace any of the existing plans, but a plan to manage the additional pressures of 
winter.  There are 4 key pressure points, linked to the pandemic, which have placed 
additional pressure on an already stretched health and care system: 
  
1. Covid pressures remain very high 
2. Non-covid health problems are move severe 
3. The workforce is depleted by sickness and recruitment challenges, and 
4. This pressure is across the whole of the health and care sector. 
  
In the ensuing discussion, and in response to detailed questioning and challenge the 
following matters were highlighted: 
  
There has been a reduction in covid case rates but these remain high.  
Hospitalisations are lower than the peak but are still very high.  Death rates are 32 
times greater in unvaccinated people.  High vaccination rates equate to low infection 
rates and this will be crucial as we move through the winter plan.  Non covid-related 
mental and physical health levels are close to pre pandemic levels.  Workforce 
pressures (staff absences, recruitment etc) are severe across every part of the health 
and care sector.  All of winter will be complicated and pressurised, but lessons have 
been learned and risks and challenges identified.  4 areas - preventing/minimising 
urgent care demand, access to urgent/same day care and treatment, treatment (in-
patient care) and flow, discharge and out of hospital support. 
  
The Winter Plan is monitored and assessed daily through health and care partner 
SitRep phone calls to consider presenting challenges, with a senior level system 
wide call several times a week.  The Urgent and Emergency Care Board and 
Integrated Care Partnership are also involved in monitoring the plan.  The flexibility 
and agility of services to respond is more challenging as the pace of response is 
often based on service capacity, staffing levels etc.  Conversation take place every 
week and this has been successfully managed over the last few winters.  The focus 
is on patient safety and escalation frameworks are in place, with trigger points across 
each organisation.  The plan is followed every day, 7 days a week.  Organisations 
across the whole sector work well together, flexing and adapting to peaks and 
troughs and other pressures. 
  

Page 8



 
5 

Members felt that often people attend the Accident and Emergency Department 
when this is not necessary and that this should be discouraged.  Strong navigation at 
the 'front door' and clear communication messages are in place but unfortunately 
some will choose to attend A&E rather than another setting, particularly if they have 
experienced difficulties accessing GP services.  Many patients are frustrated  at not 
being able to access services and the messages about waiting times, the importance 
of uptake of vaccination and the need for people to be sensible and do the right thing 
should be strengthened. 
  
Yorkshire Ambulance Services (YAS) are experiencing unprecedented demand on 
Emergency Category 1 and 2 calls, but a reduction in Category 4, which seems to 
indicate that people are ringing the services they need.  Response times are below 
optimum levels, which is due to demand and prioritising Category 1 and 2 cases.   
People are encouraged to call 101, which was created to reduce pressure on the 999 
system. Recruitment of paramedics is challenging and more are needed.  Pathways 
and career progression is being explored to address this, alongside creative ways of 
working around triage. Ambulance services in Barnsley are under more pressure 
than South Yorkshire neighbours but are nonetheless performing well.  More 
information around performance will be provided.     
  
GP services have been experiencing many pressures and challenges and work is 
underway to improve GP telephone systems but this will take some time and still 
requires staffing.  It has helped that Barnsley now has just one Primary Care 
network, enabling GPs to work closely together.  One improvement during the 
pandemic has been the aligning of Physiotherapists to individual GP practices.   
  
Very few people experience delayed discharge from hospital due to strong discharge 
processes.  However, the nature of the care market in Barnsley needs to change, 
working to 'home first' principles with good quality home based care. There is a gap 
in the market for residential care provision for those with dementia and mental health 
needs, which is being explored and developed.  The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee task and finish group are looking into early diagnosis of dementia 
alongside a network of organisations.  Review findings will be reported back through 
Scrutiny.  The Third Sector Dementia Alliance will also be holding a Member briefing 
on dementia. 
   
 Members were reassured that although some hospital departments - such as oral 
surgery - have experienced difficulties, patients are risk assessed and get the care 
they need.  Elective care beds are protected throughout the winter to help with 
sustained recovery.  The 2-week Cancer target is being achieved, although there is 
some pressure on the 62 day target.  There is no evidence to suggest that people are 
deterred from seeking treatment and communication messages are clear that if 
people need to use services they should come forward.   
  
Workforce issues are a universal challenge across the whole health and care 
community, with  some organisations more affected than others.  Recruitment to care 
is very difficult and it is impossible to recruit to some posts.  The sector needs to work 
together to raise the profile of some posts/careers and also to address issues such 
as the implementation of the Living Wage and the development of a Health and Care 
Academy.  Receiving the Pride of Barnsley award, the Covid-19 memorial and the 
Freedom of the Borough award go a long way to helping to recognise the valuable 

Page 9



 
6 

work done across the health and care sector, which is much appreciated.  We have 
to all work together and look after each other.      
  
RESOLVED that  
 

(i) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution; 
  

(ii) Thanks be expressed to all health and social care workers for their hard work 
and commitment to Barnsley,  

 
(iii) Town centre provision to support individuals under the influence of excess 

alcohol be explored in order to reduce demands on A & E; 
 

(iv) A more rigorous approach be explored around communicating information 
relating to primary care options, e.g. Pharmacy First, NHS111 and iHeart 
to reduce unnecessary demand on A & E; and  

 
(v) Yorkshire Ambulance Service to provide the Committee with performance data 

in relation to response times. 
 
 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 10



 1 

Item 4 
 

Report of the Executive Director, Children’s Services 
and the Executive Director, Core Services 

to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
on 11th January 2022 

 
Provisional Education Outcomes 2020-21 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Overview & Scrutiny Committee of the provisional 

education outcomes for children and young people in the borough for Key Stage (KS)4 and Key 
Stage (KS)5.   
 

1.2 Due to the impact of Covid, all GCSE and A level examinations were cancelled, and outcomes 
for all students nationally were awarded based on teacher assessed grades.  Results are 
therefore not directly comparable to results from 2020 and 2019.  Teacher assessed grades 
considered a range of evidence, including practice exams and coursework, whereas in 2020 
GCSE students were awarded centre assessed grades based on what their teachers expected 
them to achieve in exams. 2019 was the last year that students achieved results based upon 
the examinations they sat. 

  
1.3 Once again, no student level results files were made available to local authorities and therefore 

results reported here are those reported by schools.  We have worked with schools to gather 
and verify student level data using the result files from individual awarding bodies and this has 
enabled us to provide a breakdown of outcomes by student group.   

 
1.4 In addition, all statutory tests for Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), Phonics, Key Stage 1 

and Key Stage 2 were cancelled.  Schools were only invited to submit data to the local authority 
under the traded service agreement offered by the Business Improvement and Intelligence 
Team.  As a result, only a very limited number of schools returned data and therefore the data 
is not reliable to consider and reach conclusions at a cohort level.   
 

1.5 As in 2020, no benchmark data is available from the Department for Education (DfE) for Early 
Years Foundation Stage, Phonics, Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2. 

 
1.6 For Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5, only national, regional and local authority benchmark data 

has been made available.  However, data relating to progress measures has not been published.  

 

1.7 The published data also uses different methodology, which differs from previous years and 

includes results from Barnsley College.   

 

1.8 Our local data, provided by schools, has been analysed using the Nexus software system which 

applies the usual methodology rules and excludes results from Barnsley College and therefore 

differs slightly to the DfE underlying data. 

 

1.9 National KS4 data used for All Students in this report relates to All Schools.  National KS5 data 

relates to All State Funded Schools and Colleges. 

 
 
 

Page 11

Item 4



 2 

2.0 Profile of Schools in Barnsley 
 
2.1 The table below indicates the number of local authority maintained schools and those which 

have converted to academies in the borough as of 1st September 2021. 
 

 Maintained 
Schools 

Academy 
Free 

School 
Total 

Primary 34 44 0 78 

Secondary 1 9 1 11 

Special  2  2 

Student Referral Unit  1  1 

Total 35 56 1 92* 

 
*There are 92 state-funded schools in Barnsley.  Holy Trinity is an all-through 3-16 academy but 
is counted here as two settings, one primary and one secondary.  The new free school opened 
in September 2021. 

 
2.2 There are 15 Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs) working in Barnsley.  In addition to primary and 

secondary schools, there are two main providers of Post 16 / Key Stage 5 provision, Barnsley 
College and Penistone Grammar School. 

 
3.0 Summary of Student Outcomes 2021 
 
3.1 Performance of note:- 
 

 Outcomes at Key Stage 4 have seen small decreases across all headline measures when 
compared to 2020 
 

 Outcomes for the percentage of students achieving a Standard pass in The Basics remains 
above the national figure 

 

 The percentage of students entered for the English Baccalaureate (EBacc) is now above 
national 

 

 The percentage of students with an Education, Health & Care Plan (EHCP) continue to 
outperform the national figure when considering the Attainment 8 Score, Standard pass in 
The Basics, entry to EBacc and EBacc APS 

 

 Continued improvements in the outcomes for Looked After Children at Key Stage 4 
 

 The average A Level grade for Barnsley remained at grade B and is equal to national 
 

 Sustained improvements to the percentage of students achieving AAB including 2 facilitating 
subjects 

 
3.2 Whilst we have seen a dip in performance in 2021 when compared with 2020, educational 

outcomes in the Borough have improved when compared with 2019. Given the unprecedented 
change in the way GCSE results have been awarded in the summers of 2020 and 2021 and the 
resulting significant changes to the distribution of the grades received (in comparison to exam 
results), pupil level attainment in 2021 is not comparable to that in 2020 or to that of the previous 
exam years for the purposes of measuring changes in pupil performance.  The figures seen in 

Page 12



 3 

the headline statistics likely reflect the changed method for awarding grades rather than 
demonstrating a step change in standards.   

 
3.3 When examining the data put forward by our local neighbouring authorities: Rotherham, 

Doncaster and Sheffield it is worth noting that Barnsley is ranked second highest performing 
local authority within the South Yorkshire region.  This is in respect of the outcomes achieved 
for Basic 4-9, Basic 5-9,Ebac entries and Ebac Average Point Score overall.   
 

4.0 Key Stage 4 (GCSE) Outcomes 
 
4.1 Previously the key performance measure at Key Stage 4 was the percentage of students 

achieving 5 A*-C grades, including English and Mathematics.  This measure is no longer 
reported on.  The significant performance measures are now Attainment 8, which measures 
students’ attainment across a range of 8 qualifications and Progress 8 (not included for 2021 
outcomes), which measures the average progress of each school’s students against their 
average attainment level at the end of primary school.  A progress score of 0.0 means that the 
progress students have made is, on average, in line with what is expected, given their starting 
point.  A positive score means students on average, have made better than expected progress 
and a minus (-) score, less than expected progress. 

 
4.2 Another change to measures at GCSE is a switch from reporting grades as letters (e.g. A-C) to 

reporting as numbers, with grades ranging from 1 to 9, with a 9 indicating the highest grade 
possible.  Within the number grading system, a grade 4 is equivalent to a standard C and a 
grade 5 considered a strong C.  Thus, the percentage of students achieving a grade 4 or above 
is broadly equivalent to the old measure of grade C and above. 

 
4.3 We also report on the percentage of students achieving a grade 4 or above in both English 

Language or Literature and Mathematics – referred to as “The Basics”. 
 
4.4 The English Baccalaureate (EBacc) is a set of subjects that keeps young people’s options open 

for further study and future careers.  It includes both English Language and English Literature, 
Mathematics, Sciences, Geography or History and a Language.  The EBacc APS calculates a 
student’s average point score across the subjects they take that fall within the EBacc 
qualification, allocating points to a student’s best grades. 

 
 Attainment 8 
 
4.5 The average Attainment 8 score for Barnsley decreased from 48.5 to 47.2.  This is below the 

national average of 48.9 which saw an increase from 48 in 2020.  The decrease seen locally 
between 2020 and 2021 widens the attainment 8 gap. Whilst Barnsley’s Attainment 8 measure 
is below the national average, this is in line with the majority of Barnsley’s statistical neighbours, 
which may reflect the disproportionate impact that Covid has had on disadvantaged 
communities. 

 
4.6 As the graph below illustrates, all cohorts saw similar outcomes to 2020, although all groups 

other than Girls and EHCP students saw slight decreases.  Boys saw the largest decrease. 

Page 13



 4 

            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Progress 8 
 
4.7 A reliable progress score is not available as the methodology for this indicator requires 2021 

national data. 
 
 Standard Pass in English Language/Literature and Mathematics (The Basics) 
 
4.8 In 2021, Barnsley saw a small decline in performance from the 70.2% reported in 2020. 68.2% 

of students achieved a standard pass at grade 9-4 in The Basics.  Although there has been a 
decrease from 2020, Barnsley remains above the national figure of 67.1%.  

 

4.9 As the graph below illustrates the biggest increase seen, with an improvement of 7.4%, was in 
our EAL (English as an Additional Language) students. The majority of cohorts, other than Girls, 
SEND (Special Educational Needs & Disability) and EHCP students saw small decreases when 
compared to last year. 

            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

All Boys Girls
Disadva
ntaged

Not
Disadva
ntaged

SEND
No

SEND
EHC
Plan

SEND
Suppor

t
EAL

Not
EAL

2020 70.2% 69.4% 71.2% 50.5% 78.9% 28.6% 77.1% 14.4% 36.5% 63.8% 70.6%

2021 68.2% 64.3% 72.3% 50.8% 75.9% 29.1% 74.9% 18.2% 34.5% 71.2% 68.1%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

KS4 - % Basics in English and maths (9-4 standard 
pass) 

2020 2021

All Boys Girls
Disadva
ntaged

Not
Disadva
ntaged

SEND
No

SEND
EHC
Plan

SEND
Suppor

t
EAL

Not
EAL

2020 48.5 46.7 50.4 38.8 52.8 29.0 51.7 19.1 34.6 48.6 48.5

2021 47.2 44.0 50.6 38.7 51.0 28.7 50.4 19.3 33.4 48.3 47.2

0.0
10.0
20.0
30.0
40.0
50.0
60.0

KS4 - Attainment 8 Score

2020 2021

Page 14



 5 

Strong Pass in English Language/Literature and Mathematics (The Basics) 

 
4.10 In 2021, Barnsley saw a decrease with 47.2% of students achieving a strong pass at grade 9-5 

in The Basics in comparison to 50.7% in 2020.  Barnsley is performing lower than the national 
figure of 48.4% which increased from 46.3% in 2020.  This has resulted in the gap widening at 
this benchmark. Although the percentage of students achieving a strong pass in 2021 is sitting 
below the national figure, this is a similar trend seen in more than half of the areas with a similar 
cohort of students when considering out statistical neighbouring comparators. 

 
4.11 As the graph below illustrates, all groups, other than SEND and SEND support students saw a 

deterioration between 2020 and 2021.  The biggest decrease seen was with our Boys cohort.  
 

  
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 English Baccalaureate (EBacc) Entries 
 
4.12 In 2021 Barnsley saw a slight decrease with 35.7% of students entered for EBacc in comparison 

to 36.0% in 2020.  This is however marginally higher than the 35.6% of students entered on a 
national level. 

 
4.13 As the graph below illustrates, there were more Girls, disadvantaged students, students with 

SEND and SEN Support, students with an EHCP and EAL students entered for the EBacc when 
compared to 2020. 

All Boys Girls
Disadva
ntaged

Not
Disadva
ntaged

SEND
No

SEND
EHC
Plan

SEND
Support

EAL Not EAL

2020 50.7% 48.6% 52.9% 31.4% 59.2% 14.3% 56.7% 8.1% 17.8% 41.9% 51.2%

2021 47.2% 41.8% 52.7% 30.5% 54.6% 17.0% 52.3% 7.3% 21.8% 41.5% 47.5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

KS4 - % Basics in English and maths (9-5 strong pass)

2020 2021

Page 15



 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 English Baccalaureate (EBacc) Average Point Score (APS) 
 
4.14 The average EBacc Average Point Score for Barnsley decreased from 4.17 in 2020 to 4.07 in 

2021.  This is below the national average of 4.24 which saw an increase from 4.17 in 2020.  The 
decrease seen locally between 2020 and 2021 has further increased the gap to national when 
considering this benchmark. 

 
4.15 As the graph below illustrates, the biggest increase between 2020 and 2021, when considering 

the EBacc APS was in students with No SEND, who saw an increase of 1.36 points.  The biggest 
decrease was in the Boys cohort. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.0 Barnsley College 
 
5.1 The published data for the local authority includes results for students at Barnsley College.  49 

of these students were attending under the Direct Entry Scheme and data provided by the 
college shows that these students made better progress than expected based on their initial 
assessments in English, Mathematics and Science.   The focus of this provision is to support 
young people with an alternative curriculum offer to reduce the risk of non-engagement with 
education.  Barnsley College is one of the few colleges in the country to offer this scheme, and 

Page 16



 7 

therefore our published results do not compare directly to other local authorities within the 
region.  61% of students secured a grade higher than their initial assessment in English, 43% 
secured a grade higher in Mathematics and 55% secured a grade higher in Science.  The graph 
below illustrates the outcomes for English and Maths at 4+ and 5+. 

 
         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 A smaller group of students in the published data include those who were elective home 

educated.  These students did not complete any GCSE as part of their programme but studied 
a Personal and Social Development pathway instead. 

 
6.0 Key Stage 5 Outcomes 
 
6.1 Results are based on the DfE published data for Barnsley in comparison to all state funded 

schools and colleges in England.  
 
6.2 DfE have not published setting level data for 2021 but both Penistone Grammar School and 

Barnsley College shared their headline outcomes with us.   
 
6.3 Penistone Grammar only offer A level courses as part of their post 16 curriculum whilst Barnsley 

College offer A level courses alongside a variety of other level 3 vocational qualifications. 
 
 A Level Average Grade 
 
6.4 The average A Level grade for Barnsley remained at grade B in 2021.  This is equal to the 

average A Level grade in 2021 for all state funded schools and colleges nationally. 
 
 Percentage Achieving AAB including 2 Facilitating Subjects 
 
6.5 The percentage of Barnsley students achieving an AAB combination of grades (including two 

facilitating subjects such as History, Geography and Physics) increased from 13.5% in 2020 to 
18.2% in 2021.  This is below the national average of 28.6% which is an increase from 24.2%, 
although the increase of 4.7 percentage points for Barnsley was greater than the national 
increase of 4.4 percentage points. 

 
 
 

English 4+ English 5+ Maths 4+ Maths 5+
English and
Maths 4+

English and
Maths 5+

2021 Initial 18.0% 8.0% 6.0% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%

2021 Actual 43.0% 12.0% 14.0% 8.0% 14.0% 6.0%

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%
40.0%
45.0%

Direct Entry Pupils
Actual Attainment v Initial Assessment

2021 Initial 2021 Actual

Page 17



 8 

 Percentage achieving 3 A*/A passes 
 
6.6 The percentage of Barnsley students achieving 3 A*/A passes increased to 20.9% in 2021 from 

16.8%.  Nationally there was an increase to 28.9% from 22.5%. 
 
 Level 3 Outcomes 
 
6.7 Results are based on the DfE published data for Barnsley in comparison to all state funded 

schools and colleges in England. 
 

 Average Grade – Applied General Qualifications 
 
6.8 Applied General Qualifications are vocational qualifications which allow entry to a range of 

higher education courses either by meeting the entry requirements in their own rights or being 
accepted alongside other level 3 qualifications such as A levels.  Many Applied General 
Qualifications are endorsed by employers and professional or trade bodies.  In 2021, the 
average grade for Applied General qualifications remained a Distinction - for both Barnsley Local 
Authority and all state funded schools and colleges nationally. 
 

 Percentage achieving at least 2 substantial level 3 qualifications 
 
6.9 Substantial level 3 qualifications are defined as qualifications that are at least the size of an A 

level, such as a BTEC diploma level 3.  If a qualification is equal in size to 2 A levels it is counted 
as 2 substantial level 3 qualifications.  In 2021, 93.6% of students in Barnsley achieved at least 
2 substantial level 3 qualifications.  This was an increase on the 79.7% in 2020.  This was a 
greater increase than that seen for all state funded schools and colleges nationally which 
increased to 93.7% from 87.9%. 

 
7.0 Outcomes for Children Looked After 
 
7.1 Due to the impact of Covid, there is no publication of national data for looked after children 

(LAC).  Our local data is limited to the KS4 LAC cohort for 2021 outcomes.  19 children had 
been in the care of the Local Authority for more than 12 months at the 31st March 2021 and it is 
these children that we report on.  Results have been gathered from schools and/or carers and 
may be subject to adjustments following any appeals. 

 
7.2 This cohort has again seen significant disruption due to the impact of Covid 19.  More than half 

(63%) had special educational needs, with 47% having an Education and Health Care Plan 
(EHCP). Preliminary analysis confirms results are positive with 13 out of 19 achieving their 
personal targets.  Multiple vulnerabilities or placement breakdown impacted on the outcomes 
for four students. There were two children within the cohort with highly complex needs who did 
not sit any qualification as they were functioning well below the requirement for entry.  Both 
children attended schools for children with profound learning difficulties.   

 
7.3 There are some notable achievements including one young person who despite experiencing 

the death of their carer during 2021 achieved 8 GCSEs. Two young people who experienced 
managed schools moves as a result of being at risk of permanent exclusion were supported to 
re-engage in their new schools and secure their target grades.  In additional three young people 
overcame significant mental health barriers to achieve their qualifications. All but one child had 
a confirmed Post-16 destination which included studying for A Levels as well as relevant 
vocational courses at Level 2 and 3. 

 

 
 
 

Page 18



 9 

Attainment 8 
 
7.4 The average Attainment 8 score for the 2021 KS4 LAC cohort was 30.8 which is an increase 

from 27.3 in 2020. 
 
 Standard Pass in English Language/Literature and Mathematics (The Basics) 
 
7.5 In 2021, 47.4% of the KS4 LAC cohort achieved a grade 9-4 in The Basics which is an 

improvement of 16.2 percentage points in comparison to 2020.  47.4% achieved a grade 9-4 in 
English Language/Literature, an improvement of 2.6 percentage points in comparison 2020. 
57.9% also achieved a grade 9-4 in Mathematics, an improvement of 7.6 percentage points in 
comparison to 2020. 

 
 Strong Pass in English Language/Literature and Mathematics (The Basics) 
 
7.6 In 2021, 26.3% of the KS4 LAC cohort achieved a grade 9-5 in The Basics which is an 

improvement of 13.8 percentage points in comparison to 2020.  31.6% achieved a grade 9-5 in 
English Language/Literature, an improvement of 6.6 percentage points from 2020.  31.6% also 
achieved a grade 9-5 in Mathematics, an improvement of 19.1 percentage points from 2020. 

 
7.7 The Post 16 plans in place for each young person in the cohort are considered to be robust and 

appropriate. 
 
 Post 16 Outcomes 
 
7.8 Six young people successfully completed level 3 qualifications in 2021 with all of them going on 

to positive destinations of either university or employment.  In addition, a further five young 
people have completed the first year of their level 3 courses. 

 
7.9 Three care leavers have successfully completed degree studies in 2021 with an additional six 

young people being part way through their degree courses. 
 
8.0  Outcomes for Children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 
  
8.1 Numbers of SEND students across the authority are generally quite low and therefore outcomes 

can vary year on year due to the different primary needs of students in these cohorts. 
 
 Key Stage 4 - SEND 
 
8.2 The KS4 2020 SEND results are based on teacher assessed grades and are therefore not 

directly comparable to results from 2020 and 2019.  Results in 2021 are based on 330 SEND 
students, 110 with an EHC Plan and 220 with SEND Support needs.  National data is for State 
Funded Schools. 

 
8.3 The Attainment 8 score of SEND students decreased slightly in 2021 in comparison to an 

increase for the national average for the group.  However, the increase of 3.4 points in 
comparison to 2019 was similar to the national increase of 3.5 points. 

 
KS4 Attainment 8 Score 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley - SEND 25.3 29.0 28.7 

National - SEND 27.6 30.7 31.1 

 
8.4 The Attainment 8 score of SEND students with an EHCP improved in 2021 and remained above 

the national average for the group.  The increase of 0.2 points was below the increase of 0.5 
points seen nationally. 

Page 19



 10 

 
KS4 Attainment 8 Score 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – EHC Plan 14.8 19.1 19.3 

National – EHC Plan 13.7 15.2 15.7 

 
8.5 The Attainment 8 score of SEND students with SEND Support dropped slightly in 2021 and 

remained below the national average for the group.  In contrast there was an increase in the 
national average, resulting in the gap widening from 1.8 points below to 3.3 points below. 

 
KS4 Attainment 8 Score 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND Support 30.7 34.6 33.4 

National – SEND Support 32.6 36.4 36.7 

 
8.6 The percentage of SEND students achieving a Standard pass in the Basics improved in 2021 

but remained below the national average for the group.  The increase of 0.5 percentage points 
from 2020 was also below the increase seen nationally of 2.0 percentage points, resulting in the 
gap widening from 4.5 percentage points below to 6.0 percentage points below. 

 
KS4 Basics 4-9 Standard Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND 23.4% 28.6% 29.1% 

National – SEND 26.7% 33.1% 35.1% 

 
8.7 The percentage of SEND students with an EHC Plan achieving a Standard pass in the Basics 

improved in 2021 and remained above the national average for the group.  The increase of 3.8 
percentage points is also above the national increase of 1.7 percentage points. 

 
KS4 Basics 4-9 Standard Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – EHC Plan 9.6% 14.4% 18.2% 

National – EHC Plan 11.1% 14.1% 15.8% 

 
8.8 The percentage of SEND students with SEND Support needs achieving a Standard pass in the 

Basics decreased in 2021 and remained below the national average for the group.  The 
decrease of 2.0 percentage points resulted in the gap to national widening from 3.4 percentage 
points below to 7.6 percentage points below. 

 
KS4 Basics 4-9 Standard Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND Support 30.7% 36.5% 34.5% 

National – SEND Support 32.3% 39.9% 42.1% 

 
8.9 The percentage of SEND students achieving a Strong pass in the Basics improved in 2021 but 

remained below the national average for the group.  The increase of 2.7 percentage points was 
greater than the national increase of 1.8 percentage points. As a result, the gap to national 
closed from 2.2 percentage points below to 1.3 percentage points below. 

 
KS4 Basics 5-9 Strong Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND 12.1% 14.3% 17.0% 

National – SEND 13.8% 16.5% 18.3% 

 
9.0 The percentage of SEND students with an EHC Plan achieving a Strong pass in the Basics 

decreased in 2021 and is now below the national average for the group.  The decrease of 0.8 
percentage points was in contrast to the 1.3 percentage point increase seen nationally.   

 
KS4 Basics 5-9 Strong Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – EHC Plan 4.3% 8.1% 7.3% 

National – EHC Plan 5.5% 6.5% 7.8% 

 

Page 20



 11 

9.1 The percentage of SEND students with SEND Support needs achieving a Strong pass in the 
Basics improved in 2021 and remained above the national average for the group.  The increase 
of 4.0 percentage points was in contrast to the 0.1 percentage point decrease seen nationally. 

 
KS4 Basics 5-9 Strong Pass 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND Support 16.2% 17.8% 21.8% 

National – SEND Support 16.9% 17.3% 17.2% 

 
9.2 The percentage of SEND students entered for EBACC improved in 2021 but remained below 

the national average for the group.  The increase of 2.9 percentage points was in contrast to the 
national decrease of 0.1 percentage points resulting in the gap to national closing from 3.4 
percentage points below to just 0.4 percentage points below. 

 
KS4 Entry to EBACC 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND 11.4% 10.4% 13.3% 

National – SEND 13.5% 13.8% 13.7% 

 
9.3 The percentage of SEND students with an EHC Plan entered for EBACC increased again in 

2021 and remained above the national average for the group.  The increase of 0.6 percentage 
points was in contrast to the decrease of 0.1 percentage points seen nationally. 

 
KS4 Entry to EBACC 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – EHC Plan 1.1% 4.9% 5.5% 

National – EHC Plan 4.0% 4.0% 3.9% 

 
9.4 The percentage of SEND students with SEND Support entered for EBACC increased again in 

2021 and remained the national average for the group.  The increase of 4.0 percentage points 
was in contrast to the decrease of the 0.1 percentage points seen nationally. 

 
KS4 Entry to EBACC 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND Support 16.8% 13.3% 17.3% 

National – SEND Support 16.9% 17.3% 17.2% 

 
9.5 The EBACC Average Point Score for students with SEND remained at 2.3 in 2021.  Nationally 

there was also no change for this group.  As a result, the gap to national remained at 0.2 points 
below. 

 
KS4 EBACC APS 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND 2.0 2.3 2.3 

National – SEND 2.2 2.5 2.5 

 
9.6 The EBACC Average Point Score for students with an EHCP remained at 1.5 in 2021.  Nationally 

there was also no change for this group.  As a result, the gap to national remained at 0.3 points 
above. 

 
KS4 EBACC APS 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – EHC Plan 1.1 1.5 1.5 

National – EHC Plan 1.1 1.2 1.2 

 
9.7 The EBACC Average Point Score for students with SEND Support reduced slightly to 2.7 in 

2021.  Nationally there was no change for this group.  As a result, the gap to national increased 
from 0.2 points below to 0.3 points below. 

 
KS4 EBACC APS 2019 2020 2021 

Barnsley – SEND Support 2.5 2.8 2.7 

National – SEND Support 2.7 3.0 3.0 

Page 21



 12 

 
10.0 Elective Home Education (EHE) 
 
10.1 All parents have a duty to ensure that their children receive an efficient, full time education 

suitable to their age, ability and aptitude, either by regular attendance at school or otherwise 
(under section 7 of the Education Act 1996).  However, the law also allows parents to educate 
their children at home instead of sending them to school. 

 
10.2 Parents may decide to exercise their right to home educate their child from a very early age, so 

some children may never have been enrolled in school. Others are withdrawn from mainstream 
school at various stages up to the end of compulsory school age. 

 
10.3 We want the home educated child to have a positive experience by developing productive and 

supportive working relationships with parents and by working together to ensure the best 
educational interests of the child.  

 
10.4 It is estimated that a total of 81,196 children and young people were being electively home 

educated as of October 2021.  This is an increase of 7% when compared to the same period in 
2020.   

 
10.5  During the 2020/21 academic year it is estimated that the total cumulative number of children 

and young people being home education was 115,542 which represents an increase of 34% 
since 2019/20.  Furthermore, it is estimated that almost half (49.8%) of this cohort became EHE 
during the 2020/21 academic year, suggesting that the pandemic has had a significant impact 
on the number of children and young people that are currently electively home educated. 

 
10.6 EHE figures in Barnsley have been high in relation to national figures and there has been a 

significant increase in EHE nationally and locally since the outbreak of the pandemic.  Locally 
parents have reported that they felt anxious about returning their children to school following the 
national lockdown.  Some parents also reported that the home learning experience during the 
period of school closures had worked for them as a family and that they wanted to continue with 
this journey through the route of EHE. The pandemic also resulted in an increase in sibling 
groups becoming EHE which is evidenced through an increase in the number of primary aged 
children on the register. 

 
10.7 Barnsley EHE is tracked and managed by the Education Welfare Service, who register all young 

people at the point of notification. In order to support this registration and ensure that EHE is 
chosen for the right reasons, an Education Welfare Officer visits the family home to explain the 
process of EHE and capture the views of the child. The registration of students supports the 
service in ensuring students are safeguarded and that the education provided by parents is of a 
suitable standard. 

 
10.8 EHE is high on the Local Authority agenda and is a standing agenda item on the Barnsley 

Alliance Board. Barnsley Safeguarding Partnership takes a keen interest in the number of 
children on EHE and approves the policies and procedures in relation to managing EHE. Schools 
are key players in exploring the choice made by parents and the views of the child and must 
support children to remain in school if parental choice is driven by dissatisfaction with school.  
Fair Access Protocol supports children back into education to prevent any delays in the system. 
Training has been delivered across the sector in relation to EHE and the responsibilities of 
professionals in relation to keeping children this community safe. 

 
10.9 The breakdown of children and young people who are educated at home as of the 26th 

November 2021 is shown in the table below.  
 
 

Page 22



 13 

Year Number of  

Group Students 

1 13 

2 22 

3 19 

4 28 

5 27 

6 34 

7 45 

8 47 

9 72 

10 86 

11 111 

Total 504 

 
10.10 This equates to 143 students of primary school age and 361 students of secondary school age. 

In terms of the number of students per Key Stage this equates to:  
 
KS1 – 35 students; KS2 – 108 students; KS3 – 164 and KS4 – 197 students. 

 
10.11 The number of students who are home educated as of 26th November 2021 has increased by 

35% on the 374 students who were home education for the same period last year.  
 
11.0 Action to Improve Education Outcomes 
 
11.1 Barnsley continues to work with school and academy leaders to deliver a sector-led education 

improvement strategy. This model has proved effective in driving up standards in Barnsley 
schools and academies.  

 
11.2 The key priorities of the Education Improvement Strategy are set out below:- 
 
11.3 The Local Authority and Alliance leaders are working with schools and academies to understand 

their specific support needs as a result of the current pandemic and school recovery plans form 
the basis of risk assessment activity for the 2020/21 academic year.  

 
11.4 Barnsley Schools’ Alliance key priorities and recovery strategy focus remains very much on:- 
 

 Improving outcomes for disadvantaged pupils and other vulnerable groups through the use 
of Launchpad for Literacy project for Primary and PVI (private, voluntary or independent) 
settings in partnership with the Education Exchange 51/78 schools signed up to date. 

 Improving pupils’ writing through a commissioned writing project with Learners First. 

 Developing evidence-informed practice through the Education Endowment Foundation 

funded leadership development programme in partnership with Doncaster research school. 

 Enhancing the quality and effectiveness of leadership at all levels through fully funded 
leadership programmes with facilitated network opportunities for new heads, 
deputies/assistant heads and subject leaders and the development of a structured peer 
review model 

 Improving the quality of education Curriculum development training with follow up modelled 
practice for system leaders, headteachers and subject leaders. Fully funded CPD 
programme co-constructed with schools for schools to meet need. 

  

Page 23



 14 

11.5 In addition to this, and despite the disruption to children’s learning caused by COVID-19, the 

Alliance continues to focus support and challenge activities on the  key priorities within the 

strategy: 

 To continue to improve attainment and progress 

 To further improve the quality of teaching and learning so that it is consistently good or better 

 To close the achievement gap between vulnerable groups and their peers with a particular 

focus on those students who have a special education need or disability and / or are eligible 

for student premium funding, including children in care and those eligible for free school 

meals 

 To improve attendance and develop better access to alternative provision for students at 

risk of exclusion 

 To build leadership capacity which empowers leaders at all levels to develop a sustainable 

model of continuous improvement across all Barnsley schools 

 To promote access to greater opportunity for children and young people through supporting 

the aims of the More and Better Jobs Strategy. 

 
11.6 It is important to note that Barnsley School’s Alliance are currently working 

 collaboratively to revise the Education Improvement Strategy for 2022 - 2024. In doing so, 
colleagues will ensure that the priorities identified will further embed and strengthen the work of 
the Alliance ensuring that the right priorities for our children and young people are identified. 
More importantly it will demonstrate how we intend to measure and evidence the impact, steps 
and actions taken  to critically challenge and hold leaders to account as a sector. 

 
11.7 Barnsley benefits from the expertise of 4 National Leaders of Education (NLEs), 12 Local 

Leaders of Education (LLEs) and 2 Consultant Headteachers (CHTs). The practice of peer 
review is developing leaders’ expertise in school evaluation methodology. 

 
11.8 In addition to the priorities set out above, the Alliance continues to address the need to improve 

inclusion in Barnsley schools and academies by focusing on developing practice to support 
children and young people with SEND. 

 
11.9 The Office for National Statistics in its analysis of remote learning during the pandemic in 

England (April 2020 – June 2021) reported that the largest gaps in learning covered between in-
school pupils and those learning online were in neighbourhoods’ with the largest proportion of 
children eligible for free school meals (an indicator used as a proxy for deprivation in the study) 
and the lowest levels of parental instruction. 

 

11.10 Therefore, enabling all students to achieve their potential through attendance at a good school 
and ensuring consistent provision for all will better equip them to continue to be engaged in 
training, education and employment, access the local labour market and become more resilient 
against the effects of deprivation. 

 
12.0 Invited Witnesses:- 
 
 The following witnesses have been invited to today’s meeting to answer questions from the 

committee:- 
 

 Mel John-Ross, Executive Director Children’s Services, BMBC 

 Jane Allen, Service Manager for Education Welfare, Children’s Services Directorate, BMBC 

 Helen Collins, Business Improvement and Intelligence Advisor, Core Services Directorate, 
BMBC 

Page 24



 15 

 Liz Gibson, Virtual Headteacher, Looked After Children and Vulnerable Groups, Children’s 
Services Directorate, BMBC 

 Nina Sleight, Service Director, Education, Early Start & Prevention, Children’s Services 
Directorate, BMBC 

 Tom Smith, Head of Employment and Skills, Place Directorate, BMBC 

 Neil Wilkinson, Projects and Contracts Manager, Place Directorate, BMBC 

 Anna Turner, Interim Head of Education and Partnerships, Children’s Services Directorate, 
BMBC 

 Paul Crook, Principal of Penistone Grammar School and Chair of Barnsley Alliance 

 Lee McClure, Headteacher at Springvale Primary School and Joint Chair of Barnsley Alliance 

 Ken Merry, Vice Principal for Quality, Barnsley College 

 Councillor Trevor Cave, Cabinet Spokesperson for Children’s Services, BMBC 
 
13.0 Possible Areas for Investigation:- 
 
 Members may want to ask questions around the following areas:- 
 

 Which areas of performance are you most pleased with, what could have gone better, and 
what plans are in place to address this to support future cohorts? 

 

 What are the safeguarding concerns relating to the increase in elective home education?  
 

 How are you working towards closing the attainment gap for disadvantaged students? 
 

 How many students in this cohort are now not in education, employment or training? 
 

 How is the new T-Level Qualification being rolled out in Barnsley? What benefits will it have 
for students? 

 

 How do you prepare students to enter the local labour market? 
 

 Has the disruption to A-Level exams affected students gaining university places? 
 

 What value has the new free school added? 
 

 How confident are you that assessment data is robust and a consistent approach has been 
used across schools?  What quality checks are in place? 

 

 When will the Education Improvement Strategy be published, how will it be monitored and 
what lessons have been learned from the previous strategy? 

 

 What evaluation has been done to determine the success of the measures put in place to 
strengthen and maximise support for the 2020-21 exam cohort, as outlined in the report 
presented to last year’s committee? 

 

 As the threat of Covid continues, how confident are you about the quality of remote learning 
provision within schools?   

 

 What work is being done locally to determine the scale of the problem as highlighted by the 
recent Ofsted report on sexual abuse in schools, and how to resolve it? 

 

 What can members do to support the work of Barnsley Alliance and to help improve 
education outcomes for the young people of Barnsley? 

 

Page 25



 16 

14.0 Background Papers and Useful Links:- 
 

 Barnsley Alliance Education Improvement Strategy 2019-21:- 
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s59901/Appendix%201.pdf 

 

 BMBC Employment & Skills Strategy: More & Better Jobs 2016-2020:- 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3063/employment-and-skills-strategy.pdf 

 

 Barnsley College Direct Entry Scheme:- 
https://www.barnsley.ac.uk/courses/14-16-provision/ 

 

 Trinity St Edwards Free School website:- 
 https://stedwards.trinitymat.org/ 
 

 HM Government Information on T-Levels:- 
 https://www.tlevels.gov.uk/employers 
 

 Report of the Executive Director Children’s Services, to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
on 12th January 2021 –  Measures to Strengthen & Maximise Support for Barnsley’s Exam 
Cohort 2020-21:- 
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s74368/Item%205%20-
%20Support%20for%20Barnsleys%202020-21%20Exam%20Cohort%20Report.pdf 

 

 Ofsted Report on Sexual Abuse in Schools & Colleges:- 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-

colleges/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-colleges 
 
15.0 Glossary 
 

APS Average Point Score 
CLA Children Looked After 
DfE Department for Education 
EAL English as an Additional Language 
EBACC English Baccalaureate 
EHCP Education, Health and Care Plan 
EHE Elective Home Education 
EYFS Early Years Foundation Stage 
GCSE General Certificate in Education 
KS Key Stage 
SEND Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
NLE          National Leaders of Education 
LLE           Local Leader of Education 
CHT          Consultant Headteacher 
MAT          Multi Academy Trust 
LAC          Looked After Children 
PVI           Private, Voluntary or Independent 

 
16.0  Officer Contact 
 
 Jane Murphy, Overview & Scrutiny Officer, Scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 
 14th December 2021 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s59901/Appendix%201.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3063/employment-and-skills-strategy.pdf
https://www.barnsley.ac.uk/courses/14-16-provision/
https://stedwards.trinitymat.org/
https://www.tlevels.gov.uk/employers
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s74368/Item%205%20-%20Support%20for%20Barnsleys%202020-21%20Exam%20Cohort%20Report.pdf
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s74368/Item%205%20-%20Support%20for%20Barnsleys%202020-21%20Exam%20Cohort%20Report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-colleges/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-colleges
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-colleges/review-of-sexual-abuse-in-schools-and-colleges
mailto:Scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


  

 

  

 

1 
 

 

 
 

Item 5 

 

Meeting: Safeguarding Private Member Briefing (Redacted)  

Date of meeting: 11th January 2022 

Report Title: Children's Social Care Monthly Report –  October 2021 

Author: Matt Biggs,  Business Improvement Advisor 

 
 

1. Background  
 
Members of the Committee will be aware that the People Directorate has a monthly children’s social care 
report, which contains an overview of the major performance indicators for children’s safeguarding and 
social care.  
 
The October 2021 edition of the children’s social care report is attached. It includes a summary section 
with an overview of performance, using RAG (Red, Amber, Green) ratings and direction of travel for most 
indicators. Barnsley's historical performance and comparisons with other local authorities are also 
included.  
 
More detailed information against most indicators can be found in the main body of the report, where 
members will find graphs, tables and a management performance analysis at the top of each page, which 
highlights areas of performance considered good and areas where improvement is required. 
 

2. Summary 
 
Below is a summary of key performance issues highlighted in the report. 
 
Early Help Assessments 
Early Help data has been impacted by the recent system migration resulting in a backlog of activity to 
upload to the new system. 45 EHAs had been completed at the end of October based on the information 
available, with 66 interventions closed.  The total number of active cases rose to an annual high of 3,959 
in October. 
 
Contacts 
Contacts during October (260) show a reduction from September’s performance (300) and remains below 
the 12 month average (316). The percentage of contacts proceeding to referral increased to 86.9% in 
October, the highest proportion since December 2020. 
 
Referrals 
The number of referrals decreased from 244 in September to 229 in October, remaining below the average 
of the last 12 months (257). Expressed as a rate per 10,000 under 18 year olds, the year to date figure at 
the end of October was 602.2; below the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (755.2) but above the national 
(534.8) average. We continue to see a high proportion of referrals going to assessment, with 98.7% in 
October. 
 
Re-referrals increased from 14.8% in September to 19.7% in October – in line with October 2020 (19.3%). 
Our year to date performance of 17.3% is currently below the 2019/20 Statistical Neighbour average 
(22.4%), as well as the national (21.3%) and regional (22.6%) averages. 
 
Assessments 
The number of assessments undertaken has increased from 267 in September to 276 in October. The 
number of assessments in October have also increased compared to October 2020 (214). The rate of 
assessments for the year to date of 706.5 per 10,000 for the 0-18 population is below the 2019/20 statistical 
neighbour average (898.8) but above the national (553.6) average. 

Page 27

Item 5



  

 

  

 

2 
 

 

 
 

Item 5 

 
The percentage of assessments completed within 45 working days of referral remained high at 99.3% in 
October, above September and well above the 2019/20 national (83.9%) and statistical neighbour (80.6%) 
averages. 
 
Performance for the percentage of assessments undertaken in under 20 working days increased from 
11.8% in September to 20.2% in October but is slightly lower than the same point in 2020 (22.5%). Year 
to date performance of 27.5% is below target (35%) and below the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (29.4%) 
and national (30.7%) averages. 
 
The proportion of assessments ending in no further action has decreased from 41.8% in September to 
36.4% in October. 
 
Section 47 Investigations 
The number of S47 investigations undertaken increased from 72 in September to 80 in October but remains 
below the average for the last 12 months (102). When expressed as a rate per 10,000, the year to date 
figure (241.6) is above the 2019/20 national benchmark (167.2) but below our statistical neighbour average 
(275.9). 
 

Percentage of S47s converting to child protection conferences decreased from 17% in September to 12% 
in October and remains below the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (39.6%) and national (38.5%) averages. 
 
The proportion of Section 47 investigations ending in no further action increased from 15.9% in September 
to an annual high of 40.7% in October.  
 
Child Protection (CP) 
The number of children with a CP plan at the end of October (346) decreased from September (350) but 
is above the October 2020 figure (276).  That figure equates to a rate of 67.7 per 10,000 under 18 year 
olds, above the 2019/20 national average (42.8), but below our statistical neighbour (70) average.   
 
For timeliness of initial child protection conferences (ICPC), the proportion of investigations proceeding to 
conference within timescale in October (85.7%) increased slightly from September (83.3%). Year to date 
performance of 88.1% is above target (85%) and above the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (70.9%) and 
national averages (77.7%). 
 
XXXXXXXXX became the subject of a child protection (CP) plan for a second or subsequent time ever in 
October, in line with September performance and significantly below the average for the year (7).  However, 
year to date performance at the end of October (23.6%) was outside the internal target of 0-18%.  
Throughout the last 12 months, 85 children have been subject to a CP Plan for a second or subsequent 
time ever. Comparatively, performance is above the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (21.6%), and national 
(21.9%) averages (lower performance is better).  
 
6 CP plans were open for 2 years or more at the end of October, increasing by X from September. This 
equates to 1.7% of all plans, inside the 0-3% target, and below the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (2.7%) 
and national (2.1%) averages.  
 
No CP plans lasting 2 years or more ceased in October. Year to date performance of 2.4% (7 closures) is 
below the 3% target, as well as the 2019/20 national (3.6%), and statistical neighbour (3.8%) averages.  
 
Performance for the timeliness of child protection reviews has remained at or close to 100% since 
September 2016, with a 100% year to date average. This is above 2019/20 statistical neighbour (88.2%) 
and national (91.5%) averages. The timeliness of child protection visits decreased from 96.4% in 
September to 93.3% in October, with 98.1% for the year to date.  

Page 28



  

 

  

 

3 
 

 

 
 

Item 5 

 
 
Care Proceedings 
The number of new court proceedings in October (11) was an increase from performance in September 
(x). The average duration of open proceedings has dropped in the same period, from 30.8 weeks to 29.5 
weeks.  The average age of concluding cases over a 12 month period has decreased from 48.3 weeks in 
September to 47.8 weeks in October but is significantly higher than the same point last year (35.8).  
 
Looked After Children (LAC) 
The number of looked after children increased for the fifth consecutive month to an annual high of 354 in 
October. Barnsley's current rate of LAC (69.3 per 10,000) is well below statistical neighbours average rates 
(110.4 per 10,000) but above the national average (67.0 per 10,000).  The number of children coming into 
care in October was 16, which was above the number leaving (11). 
 

The proportion of looked after children with three or more placements (in the previous 12 months) increased 
from 8.6% in September to 9.6% in October. Performance is above the 9.5% target, but below 2019/20 
statistical neighbour (9.8%) and national (11%) averages. 
 

The proportion of children looked after continuously for 2.5 years, and in their current placement for more 
than 2 years, decreased from 62.5% in September to 62.2% in October, below the 68% target and below 
the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (66.2%) and national (68%) averages. 
 
The number of incidents of looked after children going missing decreased from 21 in September (relating 
to 11 children) to 14 in October (relating to 9 children). Performance in October was below the 12 month 
average (17).  
 
The proportion of looked after child cases reviewed within timescales was above target (97%) at 100% for 
October and 99.4% for the year to date.  The proportion of LAC visits in time was 98.7% in October but 
year to date performance (99.2%) remains below the aspirational target (100%). 
 
The proportion of health assessments for looked after children completed on time was 96.3% in October, 
decreasing slightly from 96.7% in September. Performance locally remains above the 2019/20 national 
(90%) and statistical neighbour (91.5%) averages.  The proportion of children looked after for 12 months 
or more who have had a dental assessment decreased from 71.4% in September to 70% in October. 
 
The proportion of looked after children (aged 4 to 16 years inclusive) recorded as having a completed 
Strengths & Difficulties Questionnaire was 78% at the end of October, an increase from 74.7% in 
September but below the 80% target.   
 
The proportion of looked after children with a Personal Education Plan (PEP) remained increased slightly 
from 91.9% in September to 92.2% in October, remaining below the 100% target. The proportion with a 
termly PEP increased to 99% for October. 
 
Quality of Schools Attended by Looked after Children 
The proportion of looked after children attending schools rated good or outstanding by Ofsted improved 
slightly in October compared to the previous month, rising from 79.9% to 82.4%.  
 
School Attendance and Absence of Looked after Children 

 
In October, primary school attendance for looked after children remained constant at 95.6%. Persistent 
absence rates increased slightly to 12.7%. No primary aged LAC received fixed term exclusions up to the 
end of October. 
 

Page 29



  

 

  

 

4 
 

 

 
 

Item 5 

Secondary attendance for looked after children reduced slightly from 92.3% in September to 90.8% up to 
the end of October. Rates of persistent absence increased from 19% in September to 26.9% in October. 
Secondary LAC fixed term exclusions also increased from 1.9% to 5.6% in the same period. 
 
Adoption 
With the exception of 2013/14, Barnsley's adoption performance has remained well above statistical 
neighbours, regional and national benchmarks. Year to date performance for adoptions at the end of 
October is 21.7% 
 
In relation to the timeliness of our adoption processes,  against the target of 120 days between a placement 
order and a child being matched, timescales increased slightly from 107.5 in September to 107.8 in Ocober 
but remains below target and significantly below performance in October 2020 (182.7).  
 
Care leavers  
Care Leaver performance is measured 'accumulatively', using information recorded at the last visit, 
relevant to those care-experienced young people who have a birthday within the current month. This is 
then added to the previous performance, recorded since April, and builds up over the year. Reporting for 
care leavers can fluctuate significantly due to the small numbers of young people in the cohort.    
 
Performance for October shows that 66.7% of the cohort aged 19-21 were engaged in EET. Comparatively, 
the data is above the 2019/20 statistical neighbour (50.7%) and national (53%) averages.   
 
The timeliness of care leaver visits increased to 100% in October in line with the same point in 2020.  At 
the end of October, 92.3% of care leavers aged 19 to 21 with birthdays between April - October were in 
suitable accommodation. 
 
Children in Need 
There was 1,919 open Child in Need (CIN) cases at the end of October, decreasing from 1,997 in 
September but increasing from October 2020 (1,727). When comparing against 2019/20 benchmarks, 
Barnsley's rate of 375.7 remains lower than Stat Neighbours (468) but above the National average (323.7). 
 
Caseloads 
October 2021 data shows a further increase to the caseloads of the Disabled Children's Team, rising from 
19.7 cases per worker in September to 23.6 in October. Caseloads in other teams have remained 
consistent with between September and October however caseloads in all teams are above the same point 
in 2020. 
 

 Recommendations 
 
The committee is asked to review the attached report in a private session and challenge performance. Any 
areas for investigation or improvement can be agreed for formal detailed discussion at a future meeting of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

4. Attachments/background papers 
 

 
 

5. Possible Areas for investigation 
  

 What are the priorities for children’s social care over the coming months? 
 

 When will the backlog of migrating EHAs be cleared and does the service have the capacity to deal 
with the increased demand for services? 

Page 30



  

 

  

 

5 
 

 

 
 

Item 5 

 

 How do you plan to strengthen your Early Help & Targeted EH offer? 
 

 What learning is to be taken from those children that have been placed on a CPP for a second time 
this year to prevent it happening to other children in the future? 

 

 Why is there an increased number of children coming into care; how do you know; and what pressures 
does this put on the service? 

 

 What more needs to be done to ensure that the target is reached for the number of children with SDQs 
and what are the challenges? 

 

 Other than the SDQs, how is the voice of the child reflected in your work? 
 

 What work is done to quality assure TPEPs and PEPs? 
 

 What is the key to improving school attendance and reducing exclusions for looked after children? 
 

 How are decisions made as to whether a child progresses to the next step of the process and how do 
you ensure that this is applied fairly, consistently and in a timely manner? 

 

 When sharing Child Protection Reports with parents and families, what support is available so that they 
fully understand the content and the implications of the report? 

 

 What remedial action has been taken as a result of the annual Ofsted conversation? 
 

 How are social workers coping with consistently high caseloads? 
 

 How do you plan to attract, recruit & retain more social workers and ensure that Barnsley is an employer 
of choice? 
 

 What can members to do support the work of children’s social care in Barnsley? 
 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Provisional Education Outcomes Across the Borough 2020/21
	5 Children's Social Care Performance Cover Report October 2021 (Redacted)
	7 Children's Social Care Performance Cover Report October 2021 (Redacted)
	Item 7b - NOT FOR PUBLICATION Children's Social Care Performance Report October 2021 (002)
	Item 7c - NOT FOR PUBLICATION Understanding  Challenging Children's Social Care Performance (002)
	Item 7d - NOT FOR PUBLICATION Outcomes of the Annual Conversation Between the DCS and Ofsted (002)


